ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 4, 2007
2:49 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senator Kim Elton

Senat or John Cowdery

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Fred Dyson
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 28
"An Act relating to limtations on nmandatory overtine for
regi stered nurses and licensed practical nurses in health care
facilities; and providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 28

SHORT TI TLE: LIM T OVERTI ME FOR REG STERED NURSES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 5/ 07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) HES, L&C, FIN

04/ 04/ 07 (S) HES AT 2:45 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Tom Cberneyer, aide to Senator Davis
Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 28

Donna Philli ps

Al aska Nurses Associ ation (ANA)

G rdwood, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | n support of SB 28

Nancy Davi s

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2007



Al aska Nurses Associ ation (ANA)
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | n support of SB 28

Edward Lanb, President and CEO

Al aska Regi onal Hospit al

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n opposition of SB 28

Rod Beatty, President

Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association ( ASHNHA)
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | n opposition of SB 28

John Pound

Al aska Psychiatric Institute

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 28

Mark Beatty, Human Resources Director

Bartl ett Regional Hospital

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n opposition of SB 28

Rut h Benson, representing herself
Fai r banks, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: | n support of SB 28

Stacy Allen

Laborers Local 341

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | n support of SB 28

Russell Grange, Human Resources O fi cer
Provi dence Hospital

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n opposition of SB 28

Gena Edm nston

Fai r banks Menori al Hospit al

Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n opposition of SB 28

Debbi e Thonpson, President

Al aska Nurses Associ ation

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 28

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2007



M chael Zi el askiew cz, Chief Nursing Oficer
Mat - Su Regi onal Hospita

Pal mer, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n opposition of SB 28

Paul Mordini, representing hinself
Eagle River, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 28

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health, Education and
Social Services Standing Committee neeting to order at 2:49:49
PM Present at the call to order were Senators Elton, Thonmas,
Cowdery, and Chair Davis.

SB 28-LIMT OVERTI ME FOR REG STERED NURSES

2:51:12 PM
CHAI R BETTYE DAVI S announced SB 28 to be up for consideration.

TOM OBERMEYER, aide to Senator Davis, sponsor of SB 28, said
that the bill wll limt the use of nandatory overtinme for
nurses, except in energency situations and when the nurse
chooses to do so. The  bill also protects nurses from
discrimnation and retaliation by enployers if they refuse to
work unsafe overtine. SB 28 will be a step in the direction to
i nproving health care in Al aska.

CHAIR DAVIS said that the testinmony would be limted to two
m nutes for each person wishing to speak. She then recognized
t hat Senator Cowdery was present.

2:54: 33 PM

SENATOR ELTON noved to adopt the proposed comrmittee substitute
to SB 28, |labeled 25-LS0212\K, Version K, as the working
docunent of the conmttee. There being no objection, the notion
carri ed.

2:54: 58 PM
DONNA PHILLIPS, with the Al aska Nurses Association (ANA
expl ained her work history in nursing, and said that patient

safety is the forenpbst concern of nurses. Nurses are patient
advocates and a |ink between consuners and physi ci ans.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2007



NANCY DAVIS, with the ANA, related her work history and said
that the ANA is in support of SB 28; the issue is a nmatter of
patient safety, and |ike other occupations nurses should have
limts set on work hours. There are many categories of overtine,
but they all mean working in excess of the hours that can be
safely conpl eted by a nurse.

She referenced a study that shows the side effects of working
| ong hours, which are simlar to those incurred by drinking and
can have a significant inpact on patient safety. Wrking nore
than 12.5 hours in a shift increases the |ikelihood of nurse
error; SB 28 will limt the nunmber of hours worked to 14, which
is still on the long side. She continued to |ist the dangers of
overwor king, including patient infection, nedication errors, and
inattention to patient condition. The |ink between overworking
and nedical risk is clear; it would be ideal for everyone to
work only the safe nunber of hours, but it’'s not always
possi bl e.

3:02: 48 PM

M5. PHILLIPS said that the issue is one of public safety; nurses
need to be properly alert on the job. The bill is needed because
all nurses aren't covered by collective bargaining agreenents.
She related an exanple of such an agreenent reached by the state
of Washington that resulted in a reduction in forced overtine
with no negative results. She cited the nunber of hospital
deaths each year that can be attributed to nedical error, and
nmenti oned another study that showed the |ink between |ong hours
and nedical error and injury.

3:06:12 PM

M5. DAVIS asked for the conmmttee's support on the bill, and
explained the positive benefits the legislation would have,
including protecting all elements of the profession.

3:07:53 PM

SENATOR DYSON if many of the cases of forced overtine take place
at the Al aska Psychiatric Institute (API).

M5. DAVIS said that it's not just one facility causing the
problem many facilities are extending their nurses’ hours.

SENATOR DYSON asked if there are facilities where the nurses
have conpl ai ned of forced worKk.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2007



M5. DAVIS replied that there are nunerous nurses in the ANA who
conpl ain of required mandatory overti ne.

3:09:24 PM

M5. PHILLIPS added that there are nurses who are required stay
at work up to 20 hours straight.

SENATOR DYSON asked if they file grievances.

M5. DAVIS replied that not all nurses are covered by collective
bar gai ni ng agreenents; often nurses will try to remain at work
anyway because they feel they're needed. However, overtine
shoul dn’t be used as a nanagenent strategy.

SENATOR DYSON asked why nurses wouldn't nove to a different
facility that would treat them better.

M5. DAVIS said that generally nurses who do |eave facilities are
| eaving the profession in general.

3:11: 45 PM

SENATOR DYSON repeated his question, and said that the state may
have a lack of portability in benefits, which would nean that
some nurses could not afford to | eave their job.

3:12: 49 PM

EDWARD LAMB, President/CEO of Alaska Regional Hospital, said
that the hospital enploys over 450 registered nurses and it
allows its staff to volunteer for overtinme shifts. Travel nurses
have been brought into the state as well, which is a nmanagenent
responsibility to mintain safety levels; the bill is an
unnecessary piece of surplus regul ation.

3:14: 20 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked what rights a consuner has if they feel
their hospital nurse is overworked, and if they could request a
di fferent nurse.

MR. LAMB said that a consumer could request any specific nurse;

there's not an unlimted supply of nurses, but the request would
be taken into account.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2007



SENATOR ELTON said that he was puzzled by the definition of
mandatory overtine, and asked if nurses nust deal wth
ram fications for refusing an on-call shift.

MR. LAMB replied that his facility doesn't generally allow on-
call shifts after a certain anount of tine already worked.

3:16: 49 PM
SENATOR CONDERY asked if a nurse’s work-week is flexible

VR. LAMB replied in explaining different types of work
schedul es.

SENATOR COADERY asked if any time worked over eight hours daily
is overtine.

MR. LAMB said that anything in excess of overtime rules would
count as such

3:17:27 PM

SENATOR THOVAS said that he was | ooking at a chart that showed
that there's no overtine reported in the state’s hospitals, and
asked if M. Lanb keeps track of his staff’'s overtine.

MR. LAMB said that the hospital does collect that data.
SENATOR THOMAS asked which facility M. Lanb represents.
MR. LAMB replied that he represents Al aska Regi onal Hospital

SENATOR THOVAS asked if the hospital records would show any
mandatory overtine in the |ast year.

MR. LAMB said that the hospital does not use mandatory overti ne;
t hey draw upon vol unteers and contract | abor.

3:19: 21 PM

RCD BEATTY, President of the Alaska State Hospital and Nursing
Hone Association (ASHNHA), clarified that he was not speaking on
behal f of APl and Pioneer Home nenbers. He said that the ASHNHA
menbership is opposed to the bill, because of its inplications
in labor relations and cost of health insurance. He cited a
survey showing that nmandatory overtine isn't comonly used in
the state, and no related grievances were found to have been

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2007



filed. The University of Alaska nursing program is producing
nore nurses than ever; Al aska doesn’t need this |egislation.

3:24:18 PM

CHAIR DAVIS asked M. Beatty if he would like to make any nore
coment s.

MR. BEATTY said that the only facility with overtine issues in

the last two years was API, and the situation has since
i mproved. Heal t h care managemnent wor ks W th nur si ng
representatives to determne proper work conditions, and the
bill wll place nursing managenent in wunfair position. The
definition of enmergency in the bill is also unclear, and the

reporting requirement would be burdensonme and usel ess.
3:27: 47 PM

SENATOR THOVAS asked why the bill is being presented if there’s
no need for it.

MR. BEATTY replied that he couldn't explain why the legislation
is needed, and it <creates the problenms that he previously
nment i oned.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if M. Beatty would consider amending the
bill.

MR. BEATTY said that |ast year the ASHNA offered reporting of
overtime as a conprom se, but it wasn't accepted.

3:30: 03 PM

SENATOR ELTON comented that part of the ASHNA's issue with the
bill was unclear, and said that the bill seens appropriate to
him He asked what hospital CEGCs think an appropriate maxi num
wor ki ng tinme woul d be.

MR. BEATTY said that he couldn't give an exact nunber, and the
guestion woul d have to be asked to each facility.

SENATOR ELTON said that a facility survey had been done, but
that it was mssing an estinate of what a hospital CEO thinks is
a reasonable anobunt of overtine. He said that nurses have told
himthat after 8 hours they're not as effective.

3:32:36 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2007



MR. BEATTY said that hospitals and enployees don't like the
inposition on their nmethods of scheduling; sone nurses want to
work longer shifts, and there hasn’'t been any docunented
evi dence of overtine probl ens.

SENATOR ELTON said that he's seen evidence of the problem and
requested a better definition of an enmergency situation where
overtime could be demanded.

3:34:19 PM

SENATOR COWNDERY said that the issue appears to be one of |abor,
whi ch should be dealt with through negotiations and contracts.

MR. BEATTY said that he agreed and the ASHNHA nenbership would
as well.

CHAIR DAVIS said that the supporters of the bill mght think
differently, and asked if ASHNA has net with the ANA this year.

MR. BEATTY said that the two groups have not net.
3:36: 02 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked if Chair Davis planned on noving the bil
t hat day.

CHAIR DAVI S replied that she had not planned to do so.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if hospitals are often sued for negligent
care.

MR. BEATTY said that suits are brought, but not often.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if there's a high turnover rate for
nur ses.

MR. BEATTY said that the rates are dramatically different by
facility, and cited some exanpl es.

SENATOR CONDERY asked if M. Beatty thinks there is a shortage
of nurses.

MR. BEATTY said that personally he thinks so.

3:37:41 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2007



JOHN POUND, with API, said that mandatory overtinme has been
often used at API, but the situation has recently inproved. At
APl a good reaction time is necessary, and nurses there need to
be awake and alert; he added that nurses cannot be chosen by the
patients there.

3:40: 16 PM

SENATOR CONDERY asked for conment on negligence |awsuits brought
agai nst nurses.

MR. POUND replied that he couldn't conment on that issue.

CHAI R DAVI S announced that there were representatives from the
adm ni stration avail abl e for questions.

3:41: 08 PM

MARK BEATTY, Human Resource Director at Bartlett Regiona
Hospital, said that the issue is nore one of bargaining and
| abor, and neasures are already in effect to keep patients and
nurses safe. Mandatory overtine is in Bartlett’s collective
bar gai ni ng agreenent, and the capability should be maintained.
He explained the hospital's quality standards, and said that in
his seven years at the hospital there have been no problens
resulting fromovertine.

3:44: 43 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked if mandatory overtine is curtailed at 12
hours.

MR. BEATTY explained the shifts offered by the hospital, and
said that anything over 40 hours a week is overtine.

SENATOR ELTON said that he had trouble understanding the
definition of nmandatory overtinme, and asked how a potenti al
situation woul d be categori zed.

MR. BEATTY replied that about 15 percent of nurses work overtine
on their schedul ed shifts, sonetinmes only a very slight anount.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked how many hours a nurse would work in a
week if they had 12-hour shifts.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2007



MR. BEATTY said that such a nurse would be scheduled to work
t hree days a week.

3:47:10 PM

SENATOR THOVAS asked if Bartlett's enployees are represented by
a union, and what sort of breaks are taken during shifts.

MR. BEATTY replied that they are represented by a union, and
expl ai ned the breaks included in each shift.

SENATOR THOVAS asked if M. Beatty was aware of any nationa
standards regardi ng enpl oyee fati gue.

MR, BEATTY said that information about this has been avail able
for a long tinme, but in Alaska, even with new University of
Al aska students, staffing 1is tight; tenporary nurses are
sonetines used to fill schedul e hol es.

3:49: 51 PM

SENATOR THOVAS asked if the concept of nore enployees and
shorter shifts has been consi der ed.

MR. BEATTY replied that the traveling nurses are used for this
reason, and a bigger nursing pool would be better but enough
nurses are not available and training is limted.

3:51: 39 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked if Bartlett Hospital has protocol for
of fering overti ne.

MR. BEATTY replied that the house supervisors have a particul ar
rotation that takes nmany el enments into account.

SENATOR ELTON asked if certain nurses are called for certain
si tuati ons.

MR. BEATTY replied that only qualified nurses are called for
certain jobs.

3:53:26 PM
RUTH BENSON, representing herself, said that she's in favor of

the bill because it contains elenments to protect nurses from
overtinme and punishnment for refusing it. A lawsuit resulting

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2007



from negligence wouldn't help indicate what conditions should
exi st, but rather would show a grievous failure in the system

3:55:53 PM

STACY ALLEN, with Laborer's Local 341, which represents Al aska
Regi onal Hospital, said that filing a grievance is not easy or
quick, and it's not the best way to pronote public safety. She
disagreed with the previous assertion that Alaska Regional
Hospital doesn't use mandatory overtine, and that the issue is a
question of semantics. On-call work is required, which obviously
translates into mandatory overtinme. 12-hour shifts are not
necessarily chosen by nurses; they're often a condition of
enpl oynent .

3:58:41 PM

RUSSELL GRANGE, Human Resources O ficer for Providence Hospital,
said that while he appreciates the |egislation, he doesn't agree
with the nmethod therein. Mnimzing overtinme can be done by
treating nurses properly; he suggested that nore laws are not
needed, but rather nore nurses. Retention of nurses is inportant
as well, and Providence does a good job of this. The hospita
works together with its nurses’ wunion, which results in nore
satisfactory results than penalizing and legislation would.
Anot her reason that Providence doesn't support the bill is
because it shifts the decision for overtinme away from managers
to many individual staff nenbers. Flexible scheduling and good
wor k environments are inportant to retaining nurses.

4:03:45 PM

CHAIR DAVIS asked M. Grange to contact her in the future with
suggestions, and asked if he's net with ANA to discuss the bill.

MR. GRANGE replied that he has nmet wth nurses’ unions and
i ndi vidual nurses and they've discussed the issue of overtineg;
he hasn't discussed the bill with ANA but it does seem simlar
to the bill previously discussed the year before.

CHAIR DAVIS said that the bill mght not be perfect, but it’'s
open for changes; getting together to tal k about the concerns is
i mportant, rather than dismssing the bill altogether. She added
that the commttee would be com ng back to see the bill the next
week, and she would like to hear suggestions at that tine.

4:07: 06 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2007



GENA EDM STON, with the Fairbanks Menorial Hospital, said that
she appreciates the intent of the |egislation, and Fairbanks
Menorial has been active in providing an enpowered environnment
for its nurses. Managenent does consult staff on issues |ike
overtinme; she noted that all nurses are nmanaged by nurses, who
are sensitive to needs. She explained how the hospital is trying
to obtain a certain national credential which denonstrates fair
treatment of nurses.

She then gave an exanple of typical nurse work scheduling, and
said that the proposed | anguage of the bill could be a hindrance
to the way nurses want to schedul e their hours.

4:11: 33 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked how Fairbanks Menorial shares decision
maki ng and pronotes nurse enpower nent.

M5. EDM STON expl ained the structure of the Fairbanks decision-
maki ng counci | .

SENATOR ELTON asked how a potential situation would be resol ved.
M5. EDM STON expl ai ned how shared decision-making is fairly new
to the hospital, but that managenent discusses issues with its
nur ses.

4:14:09 PM

SENATOR ELTON asked anot her hypot hetical question.

M5. M STON said that she couldn't answer the specific question
and gave exanpl es of how nurses' shifts work in her hospital.

4:15: 22 PM

SENATOR THOVAS asked for clarification on the definition of
overtine.

M5. EDM STON explained the definition of overtine versus
schedul ed shifts.

4:16:44 PM

DEBBI E THOWPSON, President of ANA, said that the matter is an
i ssue of nurse safety, and nurses work under fear of retaliation

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2007



across the nation. Many hospitals in Alaska have nade 12-hour
shifts mandatory, and the nursing shortage will only get worse
over tine. Hospitals have tried to renegotiate nandatory
overtime to address the shortage, and nany are |ooking at
flexible and creative ways to nake hours better for nurses.

4:20:31 PM

M CHAEL ZI ELASKIEW CZ, Chief Nursing Oficer for Mt-Su Regi onal
Medi cal Center, said that the issue isn't a new one, and he's
opposed to the bill because it won't actually resolve anything;
the main issue is a nursing shortage, which will peak in 2010
Hospitals don't |ike having to require overtine, and at Mat-Su
Regi onal overtine has never been forced. He said that the
hospital is noving towards a shared governance organization,
i ke other hospitals.

4:23:15 PM

SENATOR ELTON said that he understands overtine being a synptom
of nursing shortage, but that inprovenent needs to cone in the
form of better working conditions and pay. He asked if there’s
sonme el enent of the solution that he's not seeing.

MR, ZIELASKIEWCZ replied that the bill is only addressing a
synptom of the problem and hospitals will begin to have even
nore difficulties with staffing. Many people apply to nursing
schools but there aren't enough spots in the schools to
accomodate the applicants. The workforce is aging, and can no
| onger work the sane |ong hours as they previously wanted.

4:26:58 PM

PAUL MORDI NI, representing hinself, related his work history as
a nurse and said that working hours are a matter of safety;
overtine is a | abor issue.

CHAIR DAVIS said that the bill would be |ooked into in nore
detail in the next hearings. There being no further business to
come before the commttee, she adjourned the neeting at 4:28:52
PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- April 4, 2007



